
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Agenda for the 

Allendale Charter Township Board Meeting 

Monday, May 10, 2021, 7:00pm 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Guests Present: 

 
Meeting called to order  

 
 Invocation given by Candy Kraker 
 Pledge of Allegiance  
 Approve Agenda 
 Consent Agenda 

o Approval of the April 26, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
o Bills 
o Interim Bills 

 For information 
o Financial Report 
o Minutes of the April 19, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting 
o April Fire Department Monthly Report 
o Facility Rental Form Update 

 Public Hearings 
o Allendale Baptist Church 

 Public Comments (1 min: 30 sec time limit) 
 Guest Speakers  

o Allendale Area Chamber of Commerce: All-In 
 Summer Rietsma 

o Department Head Update 
 Finance 
 Assessing 

o Intern Introduction 
 Colton Hyble 

 Action Items 
o Contract with Construction Simplified as Fire Station Owners Representative 
o IT Managed Services Request for Proposals 
o Resolution 2021-08: 5 de Mayo Liquor License 
o M45 Public Utility Booster Station Repaving Request 
o 1st Reading Ordinance 2021-01: Allendale Baptist Church 



 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

o Resolution 2021-09: Facility Rental Fee  
 Discussion Items 

o Automated Clearing House and Credit Card Policies 
 Public Comments (1 min time limit) 
 Board Comments 
 Future Agenda Items 
 Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

Our Wi-Fi connection may be used to access the Board Information Packet: 

 Account: ACT_Guest 

 Password: ACTguest 

 File location: www.allendale-twp.org  Agendas and Minutes  Agendas: Township Board 

 

http://www.allendale-twp.org/


Page 1 of 3 
 

PROPOSED 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE 
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

APRIL SESSION- 2nd DAY 
 

The Allendale Township Board of Trustees met virtually, to comply with Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services directives due to COVID-19, on 
Monday, April 26, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. and was called to order at 7:02 by Mr. 
Elenbaas. 
 
Present: Ms. Vander Veen; Mr. Murillo; Ms. Hansen; Mr. Vander Wall; Ms. 
Kraker; Mr. Zeinstra and Mr. Elenbaas. (7) 
 
Absent: None (0) 
 
Staff and Guest Present: Bob Sullivan, Legal Counsel; Elizabeth Szymanski, 
Deputy Clerk/Community Coordinator; Deputy John Ortman, Ottawa 
County Sheriff’s Department; Bill Franks, 5 de Mayo Legal Counsel; Kevin 
Yeomans, Project Coordinator; Alberto-Jose Torres, 5 de Mayo Manager; 
and Cathy Schmidt.  
 
Mr. Vander Wall pronounced the invocation. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America. 

 
BOT 21-062 Mr. Zeinstra moved to approve the agenda of today as presented. The 

motion passed. 
 

BOT 21-063 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve the following Consent Resolutions: 
 

1. To approve the Minutes of the April 12, 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 

2. To approve the general claims in the amount of $310,842.94 as presented 
by the summary report for April 14, 2021 – April 27, 2021. There were no 
interim payments.  

 
3. To approve park rental fees be waived for Allendale High School’s Rotaract 

Club, a non-profit organization, for the event they are hosting on May 1, 
2021. The motion passed. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Items Received for Information 

 
1. Financial Report 

 
2. Minutes of the April 5, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting 

 
3. March Sheriff’s Department Monthly Report 
 
4. March Fire Department Monthly Report 
 
5. Resolution 2021-XX: Public Liquor License- 5 de Mayo 

 
Public Hearings 
 
1. Liquor License- 5 de Mayo 

 
Mr. Elenbaas opened the public hearing at 7:12 p.m. 
No comments were received.  

BOT 21-064 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close the public hearing at 7:14 p.m. The motion 
passed. 
 
Public Comments and Communications 
 
Comments were received from: 
1. Cathy Schmidt, Allendale 

 
BOT 21-065 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 

 
Guest Speakers 
 
Deputy John Ortman provided an overview on his responsibilities as Allendale’s 
School Resource Officer. He advised the board that his number one goal was 
safety. He spends most of his time in the schools making connections with 
students and teaching them about various topics. This position has allowed him to 
be a great resource and liaison for both the students and other deputies. Several 
board members thanked Deputy Ortman for his commitment to Allendale Schools 
and the community.  
 

 Action Items 
 
BOT 21-066 Ms. Hansen moved to approve the hiring of Tumaini Sango to fill the Library 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Circulation Assistant position at a wage of $12.55 per hour. The motion 
passed.  

 
BOT 21-067 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor to 

sign Resolution 2021-07, establishing a temporary moratorium on all gifts 
and donations, with the exclusion of the Veteran’s Garden of Honor Brick 
Donation Program, until all various donation programs have been evaluated 
and reviewed by the Township Board. The motion passed as shown by the 
following votes: 

 YEAS: Ms. Vander Veen, Mr. Murillo, Ms. Hansen, Ms. Kraker, Mr. Vander 
Wall, Mr. Zeinstra and Mr. Elenbaas. (7) 

 NAYS: None (0) 
  

Discussion Items 
 
Kevin Yeomans, Project Coordinator, provided an overview of the technology 
needs of the township. After collaborating with Ottawa County IT, he indicated 
our rapid growth may require services outside the scope of those provided by the 
county. He introduced proposed RFP language and will have the final language 
reviewed by legal before going out for official bids. 
 
Public Comments and Communications 

 
Comments were received from: 
1. Cathy Schmidt, Allendale 

 
BOT 21-068 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 

 
 Board Comments: 

 
1. Mr. Elenbaas provided an update on the status of the statue committee. 

He indicated the committee has two meetings left. Once those have 
completed, the committee plans to gather their notes and present to the 
board. A date for that presentation has not yet been established.  

 
BOT 21-069 Ms. VanderVeen moved to adjourn at 7:55 p.m. The motion passed. 
 
 
                            _________________________     _________________________ 

Jody L. Hansen, Clerk Adam Elenbaas, Supervisor 
Of the Township of Allendale Of the Township of Allendale 















ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

April 19, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 

Via Zoom Software 

1) Meeting called to order
2) Roll Call

Present: Westerling, Adams, Zuniga, Schut, Zeinstra, Longcore
Absent: Kelley
Staff Present: Greg Ransford
Other Guests Present: Bill Amstutz, Jack Barr, Mindy Beck, Megan Beltman, Jeff Brinks, Aaron
Byler, Gloria and Robert Curtis, Bruce DeVrue, Matt DeYoung, Mary and David Esther, Randy
Feenstra, Jay Knoper, James Gerakinis, Mark Green, Curtis Moran, Kelli McGovern, Lora
Richmond, Brian Sinnott, Dave Van Enk, Greg Yaklin

3) Received for information: An email regarding concerns received regarding mining
applications set for public hearing.

4) Motion by Adams to approve the April 5, 2021 meeting minutes. Seconded by Zuniga.
Approval 6-0

5) Motion by Longcore to approve the April 15, 2021 Planning Commission Agenda. Seconded
by Zeinstra. Approval 6-0

6) Public Comments for non-public hearing items:
Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section for non-public hearing items. Kelli
McGovern facilitated the public comments beginning with callers, proceeding to participants
using the web or app. Callers and participants were recognized and comments made were
regarding the public hearings. Chairperson Longcore closed the public comment section.

7) Public Hearings:

A. JMM Developers Mining Application

Planner Ransford summarized his memorandum regarding the application to issue a
special use permit to mine approximately 774,196 cubic yards of sand from the property
on 46th Avenue. The applicant was seeking to expand construction for approximately 11
lots for future parcels and a larger body of water. At the conclusion of the excavation,
modification could be sought under appropriate application processes if desired. The
Commission met with the applicant in a prior Commission meeting, giving directions for
making the necessary adjustments. A sample resolution for the project had been drafted.
The Township had received complaints and concerns from neighbors about the road
conditions for this site and a separate mining operation in the area. The Township
attorney was present in the last meeting to help discuss those issues with the applicant
and to strengthen the resolutions if they are adopted--to provide and make sure that road
maintenance occurs and the problems do not persist, which was reflected in the draft
resolution subject to the process and public hearing prior to consideration for possible
adoption during the meeting.

Mr. Jack Barr, with Nederveld, described the proposed change at the request of the 
Commission to add more character to the lake resulting in a kidney bean shape, as well as 
the berm on the north property line. Subsequent after the meeting, there was discussion 
with the Township, Road Commission, the excavator, and the applicant coming to an 



agreement for road maintenance and who would finance it. Mr. Barr also mentioned 
much of the concern for the poor road condition was due to snow melt and that there was 
a plan moving forward to maintain it. 

Kelli McGovern opened the public hearing for comments and provided instructions for how 
to be recognized to make a comment. There were no comments made during the hearing. 
Chairman Longcore closed the public comment section and moved to Commissioner and 
Staff comments. 

Mr. Longcore discussed an emailed complaint involving a separate property asking if 
there had been any complaints about hours of operation or dust. Mr. Matt DeYoung, 
representing the contractor, stated he was unaware of any complaints about hours of 
operation, per the ordinance, or dust the site has generated. With permission from the 
Road Commission, ditches and swales were created for drainage to protect the road and 
are prepared to add slag to fill in potholes as needed. Additionally, a bond up to $100,000 
was in place to ensure meeting their obligations. The loader/operator would be present 
and observant for any road needs. In addition, a 25 MPH speed limit sign had been 
posted, and they would monitor and enforce speeds of the trucks to protect the road.  

The Commissioners spoke favorably of the changes made to the proposed plan. 
Planner Ransford added that a minor change had been made to the language of the 
resolution to strengthen the Commissions ability to enforce it. 

Mr. Zeinstra recommended a larger, separate temporary sign be added to make it easier 
to read from the roadway when the gate is open, and Mr. DeYoung clarified there were 
two separate signs, one on the gate and a larger one closer to the road. 

Motion by Zeinstra to approve the resolution as presented for the proposed plan, 
seconded by Westerling. Approved: 6-0 

B. 5015 Warner Mining Application
Planner Ransford summarized for the public that Mr. Curtis Moran was seeking to 
excavate about 252,006 cubic yards of sand at the rate of 50,000 cubic yards annually to 
complete the mining operation in a five-year period. This would result in two ponds and 
the proposal is generally similar with other mining operations. Due to smaller bodies of 
water, there would not be a hydrological study, but it was an option the Commission 
could require.

Mr. Curtis Moran addressed the road maintenance issues, explaining that after meeting 
with the public, the Road Commission, he believed they had a satisfactory solution. There 
were now daily checks on the road by the loader/operator to complete road maintenance 
as necessary to help avoid complaints. He added they had increased signage information 
for the public and have clear communication to the residents. 

Kelli McGovern opened the public hearing for comments and provided instructions for how 
to be recognized to make a comment. Participants and callers were recognized, and 
comments were made. Chairman Longcore closed the public comment section and moved to 
Commissioner and Staff comments. 

1) Jay Knoper: Concern regarding lots being landlocked and the private existing
easement.

2) Bruce De Vrou: Concern regarding truck traffic using 48th Avenue and requested a
hydrological study be completed.

3) Megan Beltman: Concern about the drainage tile and requested a hydrological study
be completed.



4) Deanna: Opposed the original current mining operation being approved but asked 
since approved the operation be completed as soon as possible. 

Mr. Moran addressed the comments, explaining one of the mining operations would be 
completed this summer. Regarding the water concerns, he explained many of the 
previous water issues were related to the Marshall Aquifer, and this mining operation 
was related to the Glacial Aquifer, which had no issues. Once the clay layer was reached, 
the digging stopped, and the ponds act as settling ponds for the storm water burden. The 
haul route was east to 48th Avenue and 48th Avenue to Lake Michigan Drive, thus dividing 
the traffic to help with the concentration of trucks. Regarding the easement, he clarified it 
was a county easement with public service, and an easement would be created to access 
the lots on the north side of the pond. 

Mr. Schut raised concerns about the smaller size of the easement and general layout 
deficiencies involving the parcel splits and landlocked areas due to the two ponds. He also 
questioned the property's sales history relating to the insufficient size of the easement. 
Planner Ransford provided further background, explaining the proposal was shared with 
the Zoning Administrator and Assessor with the same concerns, and some communities 
prohibited property being bisected by water, however, Allendale's ordinances did not. 
Both the Zoning Administrator and Assessor indicated that the end use lots are compliant. 

Mr. Longcore and Mr. Schut spoke about the private road ordinance in relation to the 
development and how the easement could potentially tie into it. In response, Mr. Moran 
discussed how they arrived at the current plan exceeding the 1:4 ratios with land division 
splits by having 8 in the plan. 

Mr. Zeinstra referenced Item #6 in the Private Road Standards concerned that although 
they are not providing entry, they would still be providing access to two lots, as well as 
the County property behind the two houses which would likely require a private road. 
Planner Ransford agreed to verify with Ottawa County Road Commission about the 
property. Mr. Westerling mentioned that trespassing due to ice fishing could be a 
concern. 

The Commissioners discussed concerns about not knowing enough about the use of the 
existing easement, whether it would be legal or not at the current size, its current 
purpose, and how Lots B, E, F, & G would have access to the rear of their properties. 
Direction was provided to Ransford to investigate he history of the area parcels and 
consult with the Township Attorney regarding construction of a private road. 

Motion made by Zeinstra to table the proposal, seconded by Westerling.                        
Approved 6 to 0. 

Responding to the Commission’s decision, Mr. Moran asked if part of the future resolution 
could be the created easement with approval from both sides. In addition, he inquired 
about the properties being split and a more feasible way to develop the property. Mr. 
Zeinstra responded that his concern was how the existing easement would be used, 
whether it was legal or would need upgrading, and how residents would access the back 
of their properties. It was noted by Planner Ransford that legal counsel had not been 
asked to review the plans regarding this. 

C. Allendale Baptist Church – Planned Unit Development Site Plan 

Planner Ransford outlined a church building construction proposal by Allendale Baptist 
Church located on the south side of Lake Michigan Drive, east of Family Fare. The 
proposal came through the PUD process and included a concept for a possible future 
building without specific details on the site plan. It would be accessed by WJ Presley 



Parkway connecting to Henry Street on the southwest toward Allendale Christian School. 
The plan included a parking lot for the church building, landscaping, utilities, water 
detention, a civic space near the front of the Lake Michigan property, and pathways 
connecting to the Lake Michigan Drive sidewalk. The Planning Commission was the 
reviewing body before making recommendation to the Board of Trustees because it was a 
PUD, as a requirement of the zoning ordinance, and the Township Board would also hold 
a public hearing as a requirement of statute. 

The Planning Commission initially reviewed the site plan in February 2020 and provided 
the applicant direction. The Commission recently reviewed the site plan and discussed 
the cross structure along Lake Michigan Drive and having it lighted. Previously, the 
church considered abandoning the cross structure but desired the option to keep it 
included. The Commission had requested the photometrics for the lighting around the 
cross structure, but the applicant had encountered difficulties in producing the 
photometrics without ordering the structure or having it constructed. They planned to 
limit the light illumination, and to ensure it did not trespass into the right of way or 
adjacent properties. The way the resolution was proposed, the future building would not 
require a full PUD amendment rather jus site plan approval if the current PUD process 
recognized something would go in the location, and the Commission agreed it to be 
appropriate for general commercial spaces similar with other site plans. The church 
hoped this could be the process for the future building addition. This would be a 
recommendation to the Board of Trustees if the Commission is ready after the public 
hearing. 

Mr. Jeff Brinks with Venture Engineering discussed their efforts to try to obtain a 
photometric for the cross structure which could be produced later, prior to seeking 
approval and expressed his interest in answering any further questions. 

Kelli McGovern opened the public hearing for comments and provided instructions for how 
to be recognized to make a comment. Participants and callers were recognized, and a 
comment was made.  Chairman Longcore closed the public comment section and moved to 
Commissioner and Staff comments. 

1) Aaron Byler – Pinnacle Construction, General Contractor for Allendale Baptist Church, 
requested the Commission consider approval for both Phase 1 and Phase II. 

Mr. Longcore asked for any questions or comments, and Mr. Schut addressed the phasing 
of the project, having no issues with approving both phases of the church building now. 
The Commissioners agreed.  

Mr. Adams sought clarification about increased parking spaces on the site plan, and Mr. 
Brinks explained the parking was sufficient for both the building as proposed and with 
the addition in the next phase. He also added for the Commissioner’s reference, the Storm 
Water Management Facilities had been designed with future parking and building 
additions. 

In response to Mr. Adams inquiry regarding an emergency overflow, Mr. Brinks explained 
it would not overflow on any public areas and was designed to hold overflow two times, 
100-year storm events based on Ottawa County standards. 

The Commissioners discussed the site plans for the cross structure and the lighting and 
agreeing they would like to review the plan again when more information was available. 
Planner Ransford mentioned that the cross structure could be authorized through the 
PUD process to allow it to remain where it was shown, but Mr. Schut preferred not to 
approve its location at the current time, with several Commissioners in agreement.  



Planner Ransford followed-up by asking the Commission if they considered this structure 
a major or minor amendment, and how the applicant could better prepare for the future 
or whether it could be approved based on coming back to the Commission at a future 
time when ready to construct it. 

There was discussion about the cross and whether another public hearing would be 
necessary. Mr. Schut recommended documentation for the future, and in response, Mr. 
Zeinstra advised more information was needed, including height, setback location, and 
the fall zone. The consensus among the Commissioners was standard site plan approval 
would be satisfactory for future construction. 

Mr. Schut expressed concern that the rooftop equipment proposed renderings did not 
follow the standard parapets per the ordinance and questioned the consistency for future 
building approvals. Referring to previous notes, Planner Ransford pointed out the 
Commission had offered some flexibility, and the church had proceeded based on that 
flexibility.  Mr. Schut and Mr. Adams suggested that perhaps having 3-D renderings might 
be helpful to presenting a clear presentation to the final sight lines of the building. 

Mr. Brinks reiterated that comments and concerns from the February 2020 meeting had 
been addressed and felt they had submitted a final presentation accommodating those 
requirements and was able to locate some previous renderings to screenshare with the 
Commission. Viewing these, the Commissioners asked for clarification on the colors of the 
rooftop enclosures, and Mr. Byler confirmed the rooftop enclosures would match the look 
of the building allowing for a unified architectural presence.  

The Commissioners discussed whether the applicant had met the special PUD 
requirements initially requested, with Mr. Schut expressing concern over the sight line 
and parapet wall. Mr. Zeinstra was not opposed to the renderings, but suggested future 
ordinance revisions regarding roof screenings, and that the renderings would need to be 
updated to say Phase I and Phase II as opposed to future site plans. 

Motion was made by Schut to recommend to the Board the approval of the Allendale 
Baptist Church with the following exceptions: 

• The cross structure would be presented for site plan approval before construction. 
• The proposed building and future building addition be changed to Phase I and 

Phase II. 
• The metal paneling to color match the background on the renderings. 
• The future addition would not be required to come back for site plan approval. 

Seconded by Westerling. Approval 6-0. 

D. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments  
• Section 3.19 – Tree Preservation 
• Section 24.06H – Waste Disposal   
• Section 24.06J – Building Appearance 

Planner Ransford recapped proposed new language to three sections which have been 
available for public review. Section 3.19 involves tree preservation. Section 24.06H 
includes amendments to an existing section involving waste disposal areas and 
enclosures. Section 24.06J involves building appearance for commercial building façade 
which currently limits buildings to a maximum of 40% glass and proposes to have a 10% 
minimum of glass instead. Also, a canopy analysis was done on three properties involving 
approximately 8%, 15% and 33.5% canopy coverage at maturity. 



Kelli McGovern opened the public hearing for comments and provided instructions for how 
to be recognized to make a comment. There were no comments made during the hearing. 
Chairman Longcore closed the public comment section and moved to Commissioner and 
Staff comments. 

Mr. Zeinstra and Mr. Longcore discussed the removal of the phrase “exclusive of that 
required by article 21A” under item 3 for tree canopy to simply require 25% canopy 
coverage for the property not including the right of way. 

Motion was made by Schut to recommend to the Board the text amendments to add 3.19, 
revise 24.06H, and revise 24.06J to be approved with changes and the removal of the 
phrase “exclusive of that required by 21A”. Seconded by Zeinstra. Approved 6-0. 

8)   New Business 
A. Kennedy Lake Site Condominium - Phase II and Private Road 

Mr. Ransford explained that Kennedy Lake was applying for their second and final phase 
of the authorized PUD from 2016. In 2017, Phase I was approved as a site condominium 
and private road application. Since that time, there were private road modifications to the 
ordinance, different from the time the road was originally constructed. Township Legal 
Counsel believed the Commission could grant permission to reduce the road 
requirements for phase 2 based on phase 1 construction as part of the PUD process, 
dependent on it if were determined as a major or minor change or hold the applicant to 
the current language. Planner Ransford noted a traffic assessment was provided by the 
applicant and had been submitted to the Township Engineer. 

Mr. Randy Feenstra, the applicant confirmed there were no changes to the submission but 
expressed concern about the difference in the road ordinance language and requested 
that they could continue with their original design. 

The consensus of the Commission was that to maintain the design and keep the 
continuity of the construction would be satisfactory. Mr. Longcore asked about requiring 
a cul-de-sac and Planner Ransford confirmed the Commission could require it. After 
discussion, the Commission felt it would not be necessary. 

Planner Ransford confirmed the applicant was aware of the documents needed to 
prepare for a future public hearing. Mr. Feenstra was unable to respond due to 
technology issues, and Mr. Longcore moved ahead to the Public Comments. 

9) Second Public Comment 
Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section for non-public hearing items. Kelli 
McGovern announced there were no participants. Chairperson Longcore closed the public 
comment section.  

10) Township Board Reports 
An intern was hired to help in the office and be the Community Coordinator, and another 
individual was hired to complete codification of the Township ordinances. 

11) Commissioner and Staff Comments: 
No comments were made. 

12) Chairperson Longcore adjourned at 9:49 p.m. 

Next meeting Monday, May 3, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 

Planning Commission Minutes respectfully submitted by Lora Richmond 

























 

6676 Lake Michigan Dr., P.O. Box 539, Allendale, MI 49401 
 

 
Facility Rental Agreement Form  

 
Applicant name: _________________________________ Phone number: __________________ 
Applicant email: ________________________________________________________________ 
Applicant address: ______________________________________________________________ 
Rental space requested:  □ East Pavilion □ Auditorium  □ Bandshell 
Date & Time Block Requested: ____________________________________________________ 
Reason for rental: _______________________________________________________________ 
 
The fees below are for a 4-hour block of time. Additional time for the auditorium is $25 per hour 
and the east pavilion and bandshell is $10 per hour. Facility rental blocks are between 8am-9pm. 
For outdoor facilities, rental ends at 9pm or dusk, whichever is earlier.  
 
Auditorium fee: Allendale resident price: $80; Non-resident price: $160. 
Deposit: A security deposit of $50 for rental of the auditorium is required in addition to the fee. 
We prefer two separate checks for the fee and deposit. The deposit check will be shredded unless 
the renter requests it to be returned to the address below by providing the Township with a 
prepaid envelope. The deposit check will only be cashed if there are damages to the facility, and 
the renter will be notified prior to the cashing of the check. 
 
East Pavilion and Bandshell fee: Allendale resident price: $30; Non-resident price: $50. 
 
A block of time for the Township Auditorium, East Pavilion, and Bandshell will be reserved 
only after the cost of the rental is paid in full and the person or group renting the block signs this 
agreement provided by the Township. If the agreement form is submitted online or via email, the 
rental cannot be secured until payment is received. No time block shall be held without complete 
payment. Cancellation of the rental will be accepted up to 48 hours before the scheduled rental 
time.  
 
After reading and agreeing to the attached rules and the Allendale Charter Township Park Rules 
and Regulations, please sign and return this page with payment to: Allendale Charter Township, 
P.O. Box 539, Allendale, MI 49401.  
 
By signing below the applicant agrees that to the fullest extent permitted by law, we agree to defend, pay in behalf 
of, and hold harmless Allendale Charter Township, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers 
and all others working on behalf of Allendale Charter Township, against any and all claims, demands, suits, loss, 
including all costs connected therewith, for any damage which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or 
from Allendale Charter Township by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury and death; and/or property 
damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises out of the alleged negligence of Allendale Charter Township, 
and/or in any way connected or associated with this contract.  
 

Applicant signature: _____________________________________ Date: __________________ 
 

OFFICE USE ONLY 
Payment amount: _________ Form of payment: __________ Deposit check number: ________ 
Staff signature: ____________________________________ Date: ______________________ 



East Pavilion and Bandshell Rules and Regulations 
 

The following rules are a summary of posted park rules and Ordinance No. 1997-6, Amended 
with Ordinances 1997-6, 2000-13, 2008-16, 2012-5 and 2014-8, rather than the complete 
ordinance and should not be interpreted as a complete ordinance. If you would like to view the 
complete ordinance, a copy is available on our website or in the Township hall.  
 

(1) The hours of operation shall be between dawn and dusk; no deviations or use of lighting 
is permitted unless approved by the Township Supervisor.  
 

(2) No person may deface or disturb any tree, sapling, seedling, bush, flower, or the sod. No 
person may deface or destroy any monument, marker, building, sign, equipment, or other 
structure. No person may hunt, trap, catch, wound, kill, or treat cruelly any bird or 
animal. No person may distribute or place upon Township property any sign, banner, 
advertisement, circulate, etc., unless specifically approved in writing in advance by a 
Township official.  

 
(3) No person may consume alcoholic beverages on the premises with the exception of 

Section 10 of Ordinance No. 1997-6. 
 

(4) No person may bring into the Township park, or have in his/her possession, any type of 
firework, with the exception of Section 4. E. of Ordinance No. 1997-6.  
 

(5) While open fires are prohibited, the charcoal grills may be used. All fires within the grills 
must be completely extinguished upon leaving. All waste must be placed in refuse 
containers. Rental groups are responsible for cleaning up their waste. Please bring 
garbage bags and dispose of them in the dumpster area behind the wood fence north of 
the maintenance building.  
 

(6) No person may engage in indecent or obscene conduct. No person may sunbathe or swim 
in the nude. No person may make unreasonable or excessive noise or create a 
disturbance. No person may play any kind of sound producing device in a manner which 
is unreasonably loud, raucous, or a nuisance to others within the area of audibility. No 
person may urinate or defecate except in a restroom facility provided for that purpose. No 
person may be intoxicated or under the influence of a controlled substance. No person 
may commit an assault upon another. No person may disobey any authorized sign. No 
person may conduct gambling, except as permitted by State law.  
 

(7) Working leader and service dogs are permitted in all areas. The pet owner is responsible 
for immediate removal of any fecal matter deposited by his or her animal. In areas where 
animals are permitted, animals must be kept on a leash no greater than six feet in length. 
Animals found not in the possession of or under the control of their owner may be 
removed. All vehicles must operate on roadways or parking lots. Motorized bikes, 
snowmobiles, ATVs and similar vehicles are prohibited. The speed limit is 10mph 
through the park. 



MEMORANDUM 

 
To:  Allendale Charter Township Planning Commission  
From:  Gregory L. Ransford, MPA 

Date:  May 3, 2021 
Re:  Allendale  Baptist Church Planned Unit Development – Final Site Plan Application 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Pursuant to Article 12 – Planned Unit Development District of the Allendale Charter Township 
Zoning Ordinance (ACTZO), attached is a Final Planned Unit Development (PUD) Site Plan from 
Allendale Baptist Church to construct a church building of approximately 13,446 square feet, 
with a possible addition of 4,079 square feet, along with parking, pedestrian pathways, storm 
water retention, and related improvements at 6262 Lake Michigan Drive, parcel number 70-
09-26-100-083. The property is located within the R-1 Low Density One-Family Residential 
District.  
 
Planning Commission Actions 
 
The Allendale Charter Township Planning Commission (ACTPC) reviewed the Preliminary PUD 
Plan at their February 4, 2019 meeting, and again at their February 17, 2020 meeting, and 
subsequently reviewed the Final PUD Site Plan at their April 19 2021 meeting. A public hearing 
was held during the April 19, 20210 meeting without public comment. 
 
Recommendation  
 
The ACTPC provided a recommendation of adoption of the attached Zoning Map Amendment 
Ordinance to rezone the property to the PUD Zoning District as well as approval of the Final 
PUD Site Plan with conditions pursuant to the attached draft resolution, by a unanimous vote 
of 7-0.  
 
Board of Trustees Responsibilities 
 
Review Procedure 
 
Pursuant to Section 12.07E – Procedures, Step 5 Township Board Action and Public Hearing 
of the ACTZO, the Allendale Charter Township Board of Trustees (ACTBT) shall review the Final 
PUD Site Plan, the Zoning Map Amendment Ordinance, the related PUD site plan resolution, 
as well as the proceedings and recommendation of the Planning Commission. The ACTBT shall 
make its findings based on the PUD standards for approval provided in Section 12.08 of the 
ACTZO. For your convenience, below is a copy of Section 12.08 as we provided it to the  ACTPC. 
Our response to each standard is provided in italic font, in an effort to assist you with your 
review of the request. 

 
Planned Unit Development Standards for Approval 

 
As you are aware, Section 12.08 – Standards for Approval of the Allendale 
Charter Township Zoning Ordinance (ACTZO) provides your standards of 
review when deliberating regarding a Planned Unit Development site plan 
application. In that regard, below is copy of said Standards for Approval as 
well as our response to each in italic font, in an effort to assist you with your 
review of the request. 

 
 



Section 12.08 STANDARDS FOR APPROVAL 
 

A PUD shall be approved only if it complies with each of the following standards as applicable.  
 

A. The PUD complies with all qualifying conditions of this PUD ordinance.  
 

Section 12.03 of the ACTZO provides for two (2) qualifying conditions: Minimum Size and 
Common Ownership. The minimum size required for a PUD is three (3) acres unless the Board 
of Trustees approves a lesser acreage by finding the proposed project satisfies one or more 
standards. The subject property is 4.24 acres in area.  
 
In regards to the qualifying condition concerning Common Ownership, the property is one 
parcel under common ownership of the church. As a result, it appears that this condition has 
been met. Given this, it appears this overall standard has been met. 

 
B. The uses to be conducted within the PUD are substantially consistent with the Allendale 

Charter Township Master Plan OR based on the design of the PUD and the conditions 
imposed, the proposed uses are appropriate for the proposed location and are not likely to 
affect the recommendations of the Master Plan for the larger area where the PUD is to be 
located.  

 
The subject property is master planned with the General Commercial classification, which is 
consistent with the General Commercial Zoning District, where Churches are allowed by 
special use. Its location related to the transportation network, public utilities, and pedestrian 
access is also consistent with related master plan provisions. Given this, it appears this 
standard has been met. 

 
C. The PUD is compatible with surrounding uses of property and the natural environment. 

 
We believe the use is compatible with the surrounding uses of property, which include 
commercial business, a house, and the Allendale Christian School. In addition, the proposed 
appears to be compatible with the natural environment, given that the site is generally flat 
and wooded without significant physical features. Given this, it appears this standard has 
been met.  

 
D. The PUD will not result in significant adverse effects upon nearby or adjacent lands and will 

not significantly change the essential character of the surrounding area. 
 

We do not believe that the PUD will result in any adverse effects on nearby or adjacent lands 
nor change the essential character of the area. In fact, two churches already exist on Lake 
Michigan Drive and to our knowledge, have not adversely affected surrounding property. 
Nonetheless, pending comments received at the public hearing, we believe this standard has 
been met. 

 
E. The proposed development is consistent with the spirit of the PUD District, as described in 

this Article and represents an opportunity for improved or innovative development for the 
community that could not be achieved through conventional zoning. 

 
Based upon your preliminary review findings, it appears that this standard has been met. 

 
F. The PUD preserves and maintains mature woodlands, fields, pastures, meadows and 

creates sufficient buffer areas to minimize conflicts between residential and agricultural 
uses. 

 



While the PUD does not retain significant woodlands, its location reduces the need for buffer 
to adjacent properties. That said, the site does include a proposed landscape buffer adjacent 
to the dwelling located to the northwest. Given this, it appears this standard has been met. 

 
G. The individual lots, buildings, roadways, and open space areas within the PUD are designed 

to minimize the alteration of environmental site features. 
 
The proposed development will likely minimize impact to the existing topographic site 
features, except for the removal of trees. As a result, it appears that this standard has been 
met. 

 
H. The PUD can be adequately served by public utilities such as police and fire protection or 

public or on-site community water or sanitary sewer. 
 

Given that all relevant Township Departments did not express any concerns in these regards 
and given that public water and sanitary sewer is proposed within the project, it appears 
that this standard has been met. 

 
I. If the PUD is to be completed in phases, the PUD shall be designed so that each phase is 

complete in and of itself, in terms of services, facilities and open spaces, and so that each 
phase contains all the features necessary to ensure the protection of natural resources and 
the health, safety, and welfare of the users of the PUD and the occupants of the surrounding 
area. 

 
While the proposed development identifies a future building at the northern portion of the 
site, the proposed church building meets the requirements of the ACTZO and is designed so 
that it contains the necessary features to ensure the protection of the health, safety, and 
welfare of the uses and natural resources without the future building. As a result, it appears 
this standard has been met. 

 
Public Hearing & First Reading  
 
Pursuant to the ACTZO and the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Act 110 of 2006, as amended, the ACTBT shall hold 
a public hearing regarding the request. A public hearing, along with a first reading of the request, has been 
scheduled for your May 10, 2021 meeting.  
 
Second Reading & Conditions of Approval 
 
As a part of this process, the ACTBT can impose reasonable conditions upon its approval of the PUD pursuant to 
Section 12.07E3 of the ACTZO. A copy of said section is below for your convenience. The ACTBT final approval 
does not occur until after public hearing and the second reading, and a vote of the membership is held.  
 

Section 12.07E3. The Township Board may impose reasonable conditions upon its approval of 
the PUD. Such condition may include conditions necessary to ensure that public services and 
facilities affected by the PUD will be capable of accommodating increased service and facility 
loads caused by the property use or activity, to protect the natural environment and conserve 
natural resources and energy, to ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, and to 
promote the use of property in a socially and economically desirable manner. 

 
Resolution 
 
As aforementioned, the ACTPC recommended adoption of the draft resolution by the ACTBT. This should not be 
adopted until after your second reading.  
 



If you have any questions, please let us know. 
 

GLR 
Planner 
 
Attachments 

 

 
 
 
 



1  

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ALLENDALE 
COUNTY OF OTTAWA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION #__________ 

 
 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Allendale, 

Ottawa County, Michigan, held at the Allendale Charter Township Hall located at 6676 Lake 

Michigan Drive, Allendale Charter Township, Ottawa County, Michigan, on the _________ day 

of _________, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. local time. 

PRESENT:  _____________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:  _____________________________________________________________ 

It was moved by member __________ and supported by member __________ that the 

following Resolution be adopted. 

WHEREAS, Allendale Baptist Church (the "Applicant"), a 501c3, whose address is P.O. 

Box 157, Allendale, Michigan, 49401, applied to Allendale Charter Township (the “Township”) 

for Planned Unit Development approval pursuant to Article 12 of the Allendale Charter 

Township Zoning Ordinance (the “Zoning Ordinance”), to construct a 13,446 square foot 

Church use, as shown in the site plan submission titled Allendale Baptist Church – 6262 Lake 

Michigan Dr., prepared by Venture Engineering, LLC, dated 01/18/21 (the “Development”), 

which includes; 

1. A two (2) page PUD Rezoning Application, dated received on 1-4-19; 

2. An undated Allendale Baptist Church PUD Application Narrative (2 pages); 

3. Site Plan Sheets: 

a. Allendale Baptist Church – 6262 Lake Michigan Dr., Cover Sheet/Existing 



2  

Conditions, Sheet No. C0, Project No. 20144, dated 01/18/21, revised 

04/14/21, prepared by Venture Engineering, PLLC; 

b. Allendale Baptist Church – 6262 Lake Michigan Dr., Site Layout Plan, Sheet 

No. C1, Project No. 20144, dated 01/18/21, revised 04/14/21, prepared by 

Venture Engineering, PLLC; 

c. Allendale Baptist Church – 6262 Lake Michigan Dr., Site Grading and SESC 

Plan, Sheet No. C2, Project No. 20144, dated 01/18/21, revised 04/14/21, 

prepared by Venture Engineering, PLLC; 

d. Allendale Baptist Church – 6262 Lake Michigan Dr., Site Utility Plan, Sheet 

No. C3, Project No. 20144, dated 01/18/21, revised 04/14/21, prepared by 

Venture Engineering, PLLC; 

e. Allendale Baptist Church – 6262 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale Twp., 

Michigan, Proposed Landscape Plan, Sheet No. L-1, Drawing Number 20144, 

dated 021521, prepared by Design Scapes; 

f. Allendale Baptist photometrics, Dated 2/9/2021, 1 of 1; 

g. Allendale Baptist Church – 6262 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, Michigan, 

49401, New Building For: First Floor Plan, Drawing A-3, Job# 201885, dated 

12/29/2020; 

h. Allendale Baptist Church – 6262 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, Michigan, 

49401, New Building For: Building Elevations, Drawing A-9, Job# 201885, 

dated 12-12-2019; 

i. Allendale Baptist Church – 6262 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, Michigan, 



3  

49401, New Building For: Dumpster Details, Drawing A-20, Job# 201885, 

dated 3/29/2021; 

4. A one (1) page ground sign sheet, Drawing: Allendale BC main id, Project: Allendale 

Baptist Church, dated 3/5/2020; 

5. A four (4) page exterior product brochure, Wall Panel Systems, PAC-CLAD Petersen; 

6. A one (1) page Flush Panel cross section; 

7. A two (2) page email from Jeff Brinks titled FW: Traffic Numbers, dated Monday, 

March 8, 2021 8:26 AM and; 

WHEREAS, before taking any action to approve or deny a request for approval of the 

Development, it is necessary that the Planning Commission hold a public hearing on the 

proposed Final Planned Unit Development Site Plan and give notice as required by Michigan 

Act 110 of 2006, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, proper notice of the public hearing on the Final Planned Unit Development 

Site Plan having been given as is required by Michigan Act 110 of 2006, as amended, as is 

evidenced by the Affidavits of Publication and Mailing on file in the office of the Township Clerk 

and the public hearing having been held on April 19, 2021;  and 

WHEREAS, the Township Planning Commission found that the Development complies 

with the objectives of Section 12.01 of the Zoning Ordinance, the standards of Section 12.08 

of the Zoning Ordinance, and the standards of Section 24.06 of the Zoning Ordinance and; 

WHEREAS, before taking any action to approve or deny a request for approval of the 

Development, it is necessary that the Board of Trustees hold a public hearing on the proposed 

Final Planned Unit Development Site Plan and give notice as required by Michigan Act 110 of 

2006, as amended; and 



4  

WHEREAS, proper notice of the public hearing on the Final Planned Unit Development 

Site Plan having been given as is required by Michigan Act 110 of 2006, as amended, as is 

evidenced by the Affidavits of Publication and Mailing on file in the office of the Township Clerk 

and the public hearing having been held on _______________, 2021;  and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 12 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Township Planning 

Commission desires to approve the Development. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE DEVELOPMENT IS APPROVED WITH THE 

FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 

1. All utilities shall be buried underground. 

2. The “Future Building Addition 4079 SF” identified within the Development Site 

Plan Sheets is authorized to be constructed at any time, as long as it complies 

with the Development Site Plan Sheets.   

3. The “Cross Structure” and the “Future Building” identified within the 

Development Site Plan Sheets shall not be constructed without site plan review 

and approval by the Planning Commission in accordance with Article 24 of the 

Zoning Ordinance. An amendment to the Planned Unit Development is not 

necessary, regardless of the area of the proposed building or building addition 

at the time of application.  

4. The “Future Building” shall only be occupied by uses allowed within the General 

Commercial Zoning District.  

5. A Maintenance Agreement shall be executed between the Applicant and the 

Township for Presley Parkway, prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

6. The Township Engineer, Township Fire Department, and Township Department 



5  

of Water and Sewer shall be satisfied with the Development, prior to the 

issuance of a building permit.  

7. The Applicant shall obtain any required permit from the Michigan Department 

of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy; the Ottawa County Road Commission; 

the Ottawa County Water Resources Commissioner; and any other regulatory 

agency having authority to require a permit. 

8. These conditions shall be binding on the Applicant and all successor owners or parties 

in interest in the Development, or any portion of the Development. 

9. Any violation of these conditions shall constitute a violation of the Zoning Ordinance 

and, in addition to the remedies provided therein, shall be cause for the Township 

Board to suspend or revoke any zoning or building permit applicable to the 

Development. 

 

YEAS:  _____________________________________________________________ 

NAYS:  _____________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ________________. 

 

__________________________ 
Jody Hansen, Clerk 
Allendale Charter Township 
Board of Trustees 
 



 

Assessing Office 
In order to limit contact with the public the Allendale Township Assessing Office is sending out this 

questionnaire. Answering this questionnaire will replace the need for us to knock on doors and ask these 
questions in person. Someone from our office may still take pictures of your house from the road, and may 

conduct an aerial review using Ottawa County’s GIS system. Completing this form will allow us to complete the 
20% township reappraisal reviews per the State recommendation for Assessors. Thank you for completing this 

and helping us make sure your parcels data is correct.  

Audit Questionnaire 

Owner or Renter? _____________ 

Name: ______________________       Telephone Number:__________________ 

Property Address: _____________________________ 

   _____________________________   

 

Year Built: _______   Remodel Year(s):________  

Year Purchased: _______  Explanation of Remodel(s): 

House Style (circle one):  Ranch  1.5 Story 2 Story  Bi-Level  Other  
Exterior of Home (circle 1+): Brick  Stone  Wood Siding Alum/Vinyl Other 

Number of Bedrooms:  _____ 

Number of Bathrooms:  Full Bath(Toilet, Sink, and Shower or Tub) _____ Half Bath(Toilet and Sink)_____       
With Double Sinks _____ With Separate Showers(separate shower and tub in same room)_____  

Circle one: Public Water / Well Water and Public Sewer / Septic Tank 

Do you have the following (circle Y or N): 

Laundry Tub/Sink:  Y / N  Steam Room:   Y / N 
Whirlpool Tub:   Y / N  Sauna:    Y / N 
Hot Tub (interior):  Y / N   Kitchenette:   Y / N 
Central Air:   Y / N      
   

Do you have a fireplace (circle all that apply – indicate the quantity if more than one): 

 Wood Burning:   Y / N  1 Story   OR   2 Story 
 Wood Stove:   Y / N  1 Story   OR   2 Story   

Gas – Direct Vented:  Y / N  1 Story   OR   2 Story 
Raised Hearth:    Y / N  1 Story   OR   2 Story 
Pre-Fabricated:    Y / N  1 Story   OR   2 Story 
Exterior:   Y / N  1 Story   OR   2 Story    

 

 



 

Assessing Office 
Do you have a basement? Y / N 

 If yes, is it under the entire home?    Y / N 
If only part of the home is over a basement, what percentage of the home has basement below? ________ 
How much of the basement is finished living space? ________ (square feet or percentage) 
If the basement is unfinished, do you have rough-in plumbing for future finish?  Y /N 
Do you have a walk-out door in the basement?  Y / N 

 

Garage 

 Are the walls in your garage finished (drywall)?  Y / N 
 Do you have storage or living space above the garage: Y / N   Storage   OR    Living    Approx. square feet: _____ 
 Does the garage have floor drains:   Y / N  

Do you have basement area under the garage:  Y / N  

 

We will be in your neighborhood to update house photos from the street. If there is obstructed view, 

May we pull into your driveway for a better picture?    □yes    □no 

 

Signature:______________________________________________ 

Any additional comments or information: 

 

 

For office use only: 

Date Received:____________    Date Processed:________________ 

Employee Initials:__________    PRE: Y/N 

 



          Allendale Charter Township, 
Michigan 

 

Allendale Charter Township 
6676 Lake Michigan Drive • Allendale, Michigan 49401 

 Telephone (616)-895-6295   Fax (616)-895-6330   www.allendale-twp.org 
 
 

 

 
 
April 21, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Managed Services provider: 
 
Allendale Charter Township is seeking proposals for IT systems monitoring and related services.  Detailed 
bid information is provided on the enclosed request for proposal. Interested parties must submit the required 
proposal information.  All proposals must be received by 5:00 PM, June 4, 2021. Complete timeline can 
be found in the request for proposal. 
 
Main criteria for evaluation include: 
 

1. Services that will be provided. 
2. Technical expertise and experience in services requested. 
3. Ability to provide onsite services. 
4. Cost of the services. 
5. References on similar projects. 

 
All proposals will be subject to evaluation and approval by the Allendale Charter Township Board.  
 
Allendale Charter Township reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals should they deem it 
to be in the best interest of the Township to do so and to waive any or all irregularities or deficiencies in 
the bidding process. 
 
Feel free to contact Kevin Yeomans at (616) 892-3115 or kevinyeomans@allendale-twp.org if you have 
any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Kevin Yeomans 
Project Coordinator 
Allendale Charter Township 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 
Introduction/Objectives: 
 
Allendale Charter Township is seeking proposals from qualified IT service providers to provide 
ongoing IT systems monitoring and support to the Township.  The objectives of this proposal 
include, but are not limited to, full managed services for the IT environment with key items to be 
included as follows: 
 

1. Asset tracking (hardware/software)  
2. Remote management tools 
3. Antivirus/malware protection  
4. Disk space/health checking  
5. Simple network device monitoring  
6. 24/7 critical/emergency event alerting  
7. Microsoft and third-party automated patch deployment  
8. In-depth reporting on system trends  
9. Centralized management portal for PC’s, servers, and SNMP devices  
10. Major Linux distribution monitoring (limited functions)  
11. End user security awareness training/testing  
12. IT vendor management 
13. Multi-tier help desk 24/7 support 
14. Onsite support, as needed (when remote remediation is unsuccessful) 
15. Spam filtering 
16. Critical alert response and remediation 
17. Virtual Chief Information Officer (vCIO) – Quarterly Business Reviews and monthly 

reporting  
18. Service Alignment Engineer (SAE) – Monthly consultations for patching of systems and 

status reports 
19. Documentation of client environment  
20. Public web domain management  
21. Regular, proactive maintenance on servers and infrastructure  
22. Unlimited* support of defined applications and platforms  
23. Level 1 support for proprietary/third-party applications  
24. External and internal vulnerability scan and analysis  
25. Environmental monitoring 

 
 
If any exceptions in the above list that cannot be accomplished, please note the numbers below 
 
 
 
By signing the below, I am confirming that all of the above items are included in my base 
proposal 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
In addition to full managed services, the selected partner must be positioned and able to provide 
project services for the Township.  The company selected to provide ongoing managed services 
to the Township must be able to lead a project that will move the Township’s network out of the 
Ottawa County cloud and into either a hosted cloud, or premise-based solution.  This will include 
some Microsoft 365 expertise and the ability to implement the 365 suite and offerings.  
 
Environment: 
 

The Allendale Charter Township IT infrastructure includes equipment contained at 3 
physical addresses connected by fiber. 
Township Hall - 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, MI 49401 
Library – 6175 Library Ln, Allendale, MI 49401 
11624 40th Ave, Allendale, MI 49401 
Ottawa County – XXXXXXX 
 

 
Hardware (complete details available upon request): 

1. PCs: 56 
2. Physical Servers: 1 (library) 
3. Virtual Server Instances 5 
4. Users Domain/Email: 42 
5. Network Switches: 6 
6. Firewalls: 1 
 

Software/Environment (complete details available upon request): 
1. Microsoft Active Directory 
2. VMWare 
3. Windows 10 

 
Proposal Information: 
 
 Company Profile: 

a. Years in business 
b. Office location(s) 
c. Number of employees 

 
Support team 

a. Number of employees available for support 
b. Key employees/contacts 

 
Services to be provided: 

a. Services to be included. 
b. Systems to be covered. 
c. Software utilized. 
 

Cost of Services. 
a. Ongoing monthly services. 
b. Billable services. 

 



 
 

 
References (3): 

a. Company Name 
b. Company Contact Name 
c. Address 
d. Phone 
e. Email 

 
Proposals may be submitted by email or delivered directly to our offices: 

 
Allendale Charter Township 
6676 Lake Michigan Drive  

Allendale, MI 49401 
Attn: Kevin Yeomans 

- 
Email: kevinyeomans@allendale-twp.org 

 
RFP Event Timeline 
Issuance of RFP  May 12, 2021 
Deadline for Proposal Questions  May 26, 2021 
Proposal Submission Deadline (RFP Opening)  June 4, 2021 5pm 
Award of Proposal  June 18, 2021 

 
Notices 
Submitted proposals become the property of the Allendale Charter Township and will not be 
returned.  No proposals will be accepted after the deadline date.  There will not be a public bid 
opening.  Results of the bid will be available upon request. 
 
The Township reserves the right to change the RFP schedule or issue amendments to the RFP at 
any time. The Township also reserves the right to cancel or reissue the RFP. The Township 
reserves the right to request clarification of information from any vendor or to request 
supplemental material deemed necessary to assist in the evaluation of the proposal. The Township 
reserves the right to revise any agreement deemed by the Township to be in its best interest. This 
RFP does not obligate the Township to accept or contract for any expressed or implied services. 
The Township reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, to waive any irregularities or 
informalities in any proposal or in the proposal procedures, and to accept or reject any item or 
combination of items when determined to be in the best interest of the Township to do so. In the 
event of a material modification, all known and/or potential Contractors will be notified of an 
amendment to this RFP. If deemed necessary by the Township, Contractors will be given an 
opportunity to modify their proposal in the specific areas that are affected by the modification. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION 2021-08 

5 de Mayo Liquor License 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held virtually pursuant to MCL 15.263(a) on May 10, 2021 at 7:00 pm. 
 
Present: ________________________________________________________________ 

 
Absent: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Township Supervisor advised the Township Board that the next order of business was 
the consideration of a resolution recommending to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission approval of the application submitted on behalf of 5 de Mayo, Inc. #1. 
 
After discussion, the following resolution was offered by: _________________________ and 
supported by ________________________. 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Allendale is committed to enhancing dining experiences 
and options for its community members and guests; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are a limited number of liquor licenses that may be issued within Allendale 
Charter Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant, 5 de Mayo, Inc. #1, has acquired commercial property located at 
11221 Commerce Road, Allendale, MI 49401; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant, 5 de Mayo, Inc. #1, has requested the Charter Township of Allendale 
consider recommending approval for one (1) SDM Off Premise, Class C Liquor License, Sunday 
Sales Permit (PM), with Outdoor Service and Specific Purpose Permit- Food; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant, 5 de Mayo, Inc. #1, has completed all application requirements 
established by the Township as set forth in Ordinance No. 2002-11 and Resolution 2002-39.  This 
included supplying appropriate supporting documentation, with the exception of the final 
approval of building inspection of the Allendale Fire Department which cannot be obtained until 
construction is completed; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2002-39, section 5, authorizes the Township Board to grant tentative 
approval of the above-stated license subject to satisfaction of certain conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Allendale states in this Resolution that tentative approval 



is granted contingent upon Resolution 2002-39 and satisfaction of the following condition: 
 

1)  Final approval of building inspection by the Allendale Fire Department 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE TOWHSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
ALLENDALE, OTTAWA COUNTY, MICHIGAN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. It is the consensus of the Township Board to recommend that the application of 5 de 
Mayo, Inc. #1 be considered for approval by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
subject to passing the final building inspection conducted by the Allendale Township Fire 
Department upon completion of construction. 

 
2. The Township Clerk is hereby authorized to prepare and submit the “Local Government 

Approval” form to the Liquor Control Commission. 
 

3. All resolutions in conflict in whole or in part are hereby revoked to the extent of such 
conflict. 

 

Yeas: _________________________________________________________________________ 

Nays: _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution declared adopted on May 10, 2021. 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 
 

The undersigned Clerk of Allendale Charter Township hereby certifies that this Resolution was 
duly adopted by the Allendale Charter Township Board of Trustees at a meeting held on the 
10th day of May, 2021 pursuant to proper notice and compliance with Act No. 267 of the Public 
Acts of 1976. 

 
______________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen 
Clerk, Allendale Charter Township 

 

















1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-01 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING CERTAIN LAND TO THE PUD 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT. 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ALLENDALE, COUNTY OF OTTAWA, AND STATE OF 
MICHIGAN, ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Amendment. The Zoning Ordinance and Map of the Charter Township of 
Allendale, Ottawa County, Michigan, the map being incorporated by reference in the Zoning 
Ordinance for the Charter Township of Allendale pursuant to Article 4, shall be amended so the 
following land shall be rezoned to the PUD – Planned Unit Development District. The land is in 
the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa County, Michigan, and are described as follows: 

PART OF NW 1/4 COM S 87D 49M 03S E 1058.17 FT, S 0D 07M 27S W 96.55 FT TO 
S LI OF M-45 R/W & N 87D 51M 11S W 53.02 FT FROM NW SEC COR, TH S 43D 
51M 52S E 28.78 FT, S 0D 07M 27S W 434.26 FT, E'LY 33.01 FT ALG A 467 FT RAD 
CURVE TO RT (CHD BEARS N 89D 02M 34S E 33.01 FT), S 0D 07M 27S W 112.06 
FT, N 87D 58M 41S W 396.21 FT, N 0D 04M 57S E 382.15 FT, S 87D 49M 03S E 
130 FT, N 0D 04M 57S E TO S LI OF M-45 R/W, TH E ALG SD S LI TO BEG. SEC 26 
T7N R14W. 70-09-26-100-083 

Section 2.  Effective Date. This amendment to the Allendale Charter Township Zoning 
Ordinance was approved and adopted by the Township Board of Allendale Charter Township, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on __________________, 2021, after a public hearing as required 
pursuant to Michigan Act 110 of 2006, as amended; after introduction and a first reading on 
________________, 2021, and after posting and publication following such first reading as 
required by Michigan Act 359 of 1947, as amended.  This Ordinance shall be effective on 
______________________, 2021, which date is the eighth day after publication of a Notice of 
Adoption and Posting of the Zoning Map Amendment Ordinance in the _____________ as 
required by Section 401 of Act 110, as amended. However, this effective date shall be extended 
as necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 402 of Act 110, as amended. 

____________________________ ______________________________ 
Adam Elenbaas Jody Hansen 
Township Supervisor   Township Clerk 



Resolution 2021-09 
Facility Rental Fee 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held virtually due to Michigan Department of Health and Human Services 
directives due to COVID-19, on May 10, 2021 at 7:00 pm. 

Present:  

Absent:  

The following resolution was offered: 

Motion by __________________, supported by __________________ that the following 
reservation fees for Allendale Facility rentals be revised as follows:  

Auditorium Fee- 
Allendale Resident: $80 for 4 Hours 
Non-Resident: $160 for 4 Hours 
Additional Hours: $25 per hour 

East Pavilion Fee-  
Allendale Resident: $30 for 4 Hours 
Non-Resident: $50 for 4 Hours 
Additional Hours: $10 per hour 

Bandshell Fee- 
Allendale Resident: $30 for 4 Hours 
Non-Resident: $50 for 4 Hours 
Additional Hours: $10 per hour 

YEAS:  

NAYS:  

Resolution declared adopted on May 10, 2021. 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen  Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk  Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 



Page 4 of 18 

ACH Policy -Finance 
The following policy shall govern the use of electronic transactions and ACH arrangements for the 
Allendale Charter Township: 

1. Authority to Enter into ACH Agreements and Electronic Transfer of Public Funds.
The Treasurer may enter into an ACH agreement as provided by Public Act 738 of 2002, effective
December 30, 2002. The Board of Trustees shall have adopted a resolution to authorize
electronic transactions and have received a copy of the policy. Applicable definitions in the act
shall apply.
An ACH arrangement under PA 738 of 2002 is not subject to the Revised Municipal Finance Act,
2001 PA 34, MCL 141.2101 to 141.2821, or to provisions of law or charter concerning the
issuance of debt by the township.

2. Responsibility for ACH Agreements.
The Treasurer shall be responsible for all ACH agreements, including payment approval,
accounting, reporting, and generally overseeing compliance with the ACH policy. The Treasurer
shall submit to the Board of Trustees documentation detailing the goods or services purchased,
the cost of goods or services, the date of the payment, and the departments serviced by
payment. This report can be contained in the electronic general ledger software system or in a
separate report to the governing body.

3. Internal Accounting Controls to Monitor Use of ACH Transactions
a. The Treasurer shall be responsible for the establishment of ACH agreements. The

Treasurer shall notify the Finance Director of those accounts to be paid by ACH or
electronic transfers.

b. Upon receipt of an invoice for payment for accounts paid by ACH, the Finance Director
shall approve payment and notify the Treasurer of the date of debit to the township
accounts. Accounts payable by this method may include utility and recurring lease
payments. These payments shall be included on the report of payments to the Board of
Trustees. All other invoices approved by the Finance Director and payable by ACH may
be paid in that matter if deemed in the best interest of the township, e.g. to avoid a late
fee.

c. For payment of State and Federal payroll taxes, the Treasurer shall initiate payment to
the proper authority upon receipt of the information from the payroll department using
the established EFTPS and state program.

d. For deposits from state, county, and/or federal authorities, and from third-party
payment processors, e.g. (Banks, vendors), the Treasurer shall obtain the amount of the
deposit and send an advice to the person responsible for accounting records.

e. All invoices shall be held by the Finance Director along with copies of payment advices.



Page 5 of 18 

Credit Card Policy - Finance 
For the convenience of certain purchases, Allendale Charter Township will maintain credit cards with a 
single copy for each of the following Township departments: 

o Supervisor
o Clerk
o Finance
o Facilities
o Library
o Senior Citizens
o Public Utilities

All credit cards shall be maintained under the designation of Allendale Charter Township. All credit 
cards will be held by the respective department director (or his\her designee when absent), except 
when the department director authorizes use by another officer or employee of the Township. 

In order to ensure that proper controls are placed on the use of the card and to comply with the 
requirements of State Law (i.e., Act 266 of the Public Acts of 1995, as amended), the following written 
policies will be adhered to with regard to all credit card transactions: 

1. The Finance Director is designated as being responsible for the Township's credit card issuance,
accounting, monitoring, retrieval and general oversight compliance with the credit card policy.

2. The credit card may only be used by an officer or employee of the Township for the purchase of
goods and services for the official business of the Township.

3. Credit card use can be applied to purchases from vendors not offering standard forms of credit
or purchase orders. (If standard forms of credit or purchase orders are appropriate, these forms
of purchase may be used by the Township, at the discretion of the Finance Director.)

4. Prior to the use of the credit card, a preliminary verbal request accompanied by a "Credit Card
Transaction Form" shall be approved by the respective department director.

The "Credit Card Transaction Form" shall explain the goods or services to be purchased, the estimated 
costs of the purchase, the official or staff person using the card, the proposed date of the purchase, and 
the official business for which the purchase is to be used. 

5. Final approval is granted when the "Credit Card Transaction Form" submitted is signed and
dated by all appropriate parties.

6. Completion of the transaction, the officer or employee who uses the credit card shall submit, as
soon as possible, a copy of the vendor's credit card receipt (or an Internet receipt) attached to
the "Credit Card Transaction Form" to the Finance Director or designee. The "Credit Card
Transaction Form" shall include the chart of account number indicating the line item to which
the transaction is to be charged.

7. Monthly credit card statements will be reviewed by the Finance Director and the Township Clerk
to ensure that all Credit Card Transaction Forms and attached receipts reconcile with the credit
card statement and that the purchases comply with this policy. Any transaction that appears on



Page 6 of 18 

the statements that is not documented with a "Credit Card Transaction Form" shall be 
immediately investigated by the Township Supervisor (or his/her designee). 

8. The Township Board shall not approve a payment to the entity issuing the credit card until all
transactions have been verified. The balance, including any interest due on an extension of
credit under the credit card arrangement shall be paid for within not more than sixty days of the
initial statement date, unless a charge is being challenged by the Township (e.g., an
unauthorized or possible fraudulent charge).

9. Each officer or employee issued a credit card is solely responsible for the protection and custody
of the credit card and shall keep the credit card within a secure location when not in use.  (If
absent for more than one day, the officer or employee shall ensure a card is available for use by
either relinquishing custody of the card to his/her designee or providing his/her designee access
to the card.) Any officer or employee of the Township, after authorized use of the credit card,
shall immediately return the credit card within one business day after the transaction to the
appropriate person.

10. If a credit card is lost or stolen, the officer or employee shall immediately notify the Finance
Director (who is the Township's primary contact with the credit card company). In turn, he/she
shall immediately notify the Township Supervisor.

11. Any officer or employee issued a credit card shall return the credit card upon termination of his
or her employment or service in office with the Township to the Finance Director.

12. Credit card abuses in the form of unauthorized purchases will not be tolerated. At no time will
an employee use a Township credit card for personal purchases. Any suspected credit card
abuse shall be investigated by the Supervisor.

13. Use of a credit card in a manner contrary to this policy shall be subject to the disciplinary
action(s), in accordance with Section 8.1 of the Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual.


	4-26-2021 Proposed Minutes.pdf
	PROPOSED
	PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	APRIL SESSION- 2nd DAY

	ADP46DF.tmp
	April 21, 2021


